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H. Acharya & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sth Floor, Gorkha Complex
Kathmandu-31, Minbhawan

Tel: 377-01-4106678, 977-985- 115-6687
Email: HarimanZ53@gmail.com

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Sun Nepal Life Insurance
Company Litd.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statement of Sun Nepal Life Insurance
Company Ltd. which comprises of statement of financial position as on Ashad 32, 2075 (July
16, 20148), the statement of comprehensive income, statement of change in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year ended Ashad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018) and notes to the
financial statement, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSz) and for such
internal control-as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Dur respansibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conduct our audit in accordance with Nepal Standard on Auditing. Those standard
requires that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatements,

An audit involves performing procedure to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to frauds or errors. In making those risk assessment the anditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedurzs that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpese of expression an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s Internal control. An audit also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
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Kathmandu-31, Minbhawan
Tel: 977-01-4106678, $77-985-115-6687
Email: Harimani25&@gmail.com

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects
expect for the effect of matters mentioned in following 1-4 Para, the financial position of Sun
Nepal Life Insurance Company Ltd, as at Ashad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018) and its financial

performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards [MFRESs).

1. Agent commission, Incentive and medical expenses incurred by the company for the
underwriting of policies has been accounted for as expenses and have not been
deferred,

2. Staff bonus as per Bonus Act 2030, being 10% of Profit before Bonus and Tax, has
been provided on regulatory profit reported separately to Beema Samiti, rather than
profit from NFRS based financials.

3. Outstanding claim has been provided at 115% which is bases on regulatory
requirement rather than in compliance with NFRS.

4. A catastrophic reserve equal to 10% of the regulatory profit Is appropriated rather
than of Net profit of Financial Statements prepared as per Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS).

Report on other Legal and regulatory requirement.
(n examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we report that:

a. We have obtzined information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b. Proper books of account as required by prevailing law have been kept by the
company.

¢. Tothe bestof our information and explanations given to us and from our examination
the books of accounts of the company, we have no come across the czses where the
Board of the Directors or any member thereof or any employee of the company has
acted contrary to the provisions of the law relating to accounts or caused loss or
damage to thn; company dellberately.

d. We did not come across any fraudulent cases causing fundamental effect relating to
accounts of the company except mentioned in the naragement letter.

&. Company’s life assurance fund and other special reserves are as per prescribed
provisions.
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H. Acharya & Associates 5th Floor, Gorkha Complex

Chartered Accountants Kathmandu-31, Minbhawan
Tel: 977-01-410667E, 977-985-115-6687
Email: Harimani2 5@ gmail.com

f. Asperinformation obtained, company has not conducted any kind of other business
except approved life insurance business.

g To get best of our information, company is able to meet its long term liabilities form
its assets.

Date : 15t of Bhadra, 2076
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Financial Positions
As on 16 July 2018 ,
Amount in NPR.
Particulars Note As on 16 July 2018 | Restated As on 15 | Restated As on 16
‘In NPR July 2017 ‘In NPR | July 2016 ‘In NPR
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4.1 34,344,797.88 109,947.61
Intangible assets 4.2 3,015,195.00 -
Financial Investments 4.3 1,527,650,000.00 | 1,250,000,000.00
Loans at amortized costs 44 8,092,262.81 - -
Other Financial Assets at amortized cost 4.5 13,285,735.74 50,000.00 50,000.00
Deferred Tax Assets 4.6 78,016.97
Other Assets 4.7 1,821,916.98
Current Tax Assets 4.8 27,299,953.21 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.9 102,546,155.64 153,981,981.70 709,750.00
Total Assets 1,718,134,034.22 | 1,404,141,929.31 759,750.00
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 4.10 1,400,000,000.00 | 1,397,259,244.00 800,000.00
Share Premium 4.11 -
Catastrophic Reserve 4.12 9,390,929.68 -
Retained earnings 4,12 84,101,726.78 5,813,344.32 (205,250.00)
Other Reserve 412 802,911.96 - -
Total equity 1,494,295,568.42 | 1,403,072,588.32 594,750.00
Liabilities
Insurance Contract liabilities 413 158,094,228.49 -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.6 - - -
Financial liabilities 4,14 55,444,409.10 384,361.00 165,000.00
Other liabilities 4.15 8,792,931.21 -
Current tax liabilities 4.8 - 684,980.00
Provisions 4.16 1,506,897.00 - -
Total liabilities 223,838,465.80 1,069,341.00 165,000.00
Total equity and liabilities 1,718,134,034.22 | 1,404,141,929.31 759,750.00

Schedule 4.1 to 4.16 and related notes formed the itegral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

Anuj Keyal
Chairman

Sashank Agrawal
Director

Kiran K.C.
Director

Narayan Roongta
Director

Raj Kumar Aryal
Chief Executive Officer

Date : 2019/09/01

Place : Kathmandu, Nepal

Kamal Raj Gautam
General Manager

Binod Sharma Poudel
Finance Head

Hari Mani Acharya, FCA
Proprietor

H. Acharya & Associates

Chartered Accountants
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 16 July 2018

Amount in NPR.
AT SUEDS Note 16#: |K|§318 15 Julgezs(;c? ;e::jn NPR
Gross Insurance Premium Revenue 417 296,975,665.00
Insurance Premium ceded to Reinsurer 418 5,307,707.00
Net Insurance Premium Revenue 291,667,958.00 >
Income from investment 4.19 180,544,962.78 8,808,120.66
Other income 4.20 3,249,062.29
Total income 475,461,983.07 8,808,120.66
Gross benefit and claim paid 4.21
Claims ceded to reinsurer 4.21
Gross Insurance Benefits and claims -
Change in insurance contract liabilities 413 157,554,228.49
Agent Expenses 4.22 106,083,384.00
Regulatory service fee 4.23 2,916,679.65 -
Employee benefit expenses 4.24 75,553,587.75 187,261.00
Depreciation and Amortization 4.25 5,131,456.00 9,995.24
Other operating expenses 4.26 40,078,440.04 586,072.00
Total Expenditure 387,317,775.93 783,328.24
Profit Before Taxes 88,144,207.13 8,024,792.42
Income Tax Expenses/(Income) (278,016.97) 2,006,198.11
Current Tax Expenses/Income 4.8 - 2,006,198.11
Deferred Tax Expenses/ Income 4.6 278,016.97 -
Profit for the Year 88,422,224.10 6,018,594.32
Earning Per Share for profit attributable to the
equity holder of the company during the year
- Basis 4.27 6.32 0.43
- Diluted 4.27 6.32 0.43

Schedule 4.17 to 4.27,4.6 & 4.8 and related notes formed the itegral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

Anuj Keyal Sashank Agrawal
Chairman Director

Kiran K.C.

Raj Kumar Aryal
Chief Executive Officer

Kamal Raj Gautam
General Manager

Date : 2019/09/01
Place : Kathmandu, Nepal

Binod Sharma Poudel
Finance Head

Narayan Roongta
Director

Hari Mani Acharya, FCA
Proprietor

H. Acharya & Associates

Chartered Accountants
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 16 July 2018

Amount in NPR.

16 July 2018 Restated 15 July 2017
‘In NPR 'In NPR

Profit for the Year 88,422,224.10 6,018,594.32
Other Comprehensive Income - --
Items that will never be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value 800,000.00
Gains/(losses) on revaluations -
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans - -
Less: Related Tax Expenses - -
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange gains arising on translation of foreign operations -

Particulars

Less: Deferred Tax Expenses 200,000.00 -
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year net of Tax 600,000.00 -
Transfer to Fair Value Reserve( Life Fund) 540,000.00 -
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 88,482,224.10 6,018,594.32
Related notes formed the itegral part of financial statements. As per our report of even date attached
Anuj Keyal Sashank Agrawal Kiran K.C. Narayan Roongta
Chairman Director Director Director

Raj Kumar Aryal Kamal Raj Gautam Binod Sharma Poudel Hari Mani Acharya, FCA

Chief Executive Officer General Manager Finance Head Proprietor

H. Acharya & Associates

Date : 2019/09/01 Chartered Accountants
Place : Kathmandu, Nepal
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flow

For the Year ended 16 July 2018

Amount in NPR.
Particulars Year ended Restared
16 July 2018 15 July 2017
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received 299,244,304.96
Insurance premium 296,975,665.00
Interest income on call account 2,257,009.96
Late fee income 844.00
Reinsurance Income -
Reinsurance commission income -
Other direct income 10,786.00
Claimed recovery from reinsurer
Cash payment (235,071,254.44)

(773,333.00)

Reinsurance premium ceded (5,307,707.00)

Agent commission payment (68,879,087.00)

Other agent related expenses (37,204,297.00)

Medical fee payment (862,599.00)

Service fee payment (2,916,679.65)

Death claim payment -

Other claim payment

Employee Expenses (75,553,587.75) (187,261.00)
Other operating expenses (44,347,297.04) (586,072.00)
Income Tax payment (27,299,953.21) (1,321,218.11)
Cash Flow before changes in Working Capital 55,342,025.58 219,361.00
(Increase) / Decrease of Current Assets (9,332,870.74) -
Increase/ (Decrease) of Current liabilities 64,674,896.32 219,361.00
Net Cash from Operating Activities 92,215,122.89 (1,875,190.11)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities

(Increase) / Decrease of investment in fixed deposit (270,000,000.00) (1,250,000,000.00)
(Increase) / Decrease of investment in equity (6,850,000.00) -
(Purchase)/Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (34,234,850.26) (119,942.85)
(Purchase)/Disposal of Intangible Assets (3,015,195.00) -
(Increases)/Decrease of long term loan assets (13,817,044.79) -
Interest income on investment 180,544,962.78 8,808,120.66
Interest income on loan 980,422.33

Net Cash used in Investing Activities

(146,391,704.94)

(1,241,311,822.19)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Issued of share capital 2,740,756.00 1,396,459,244.00
Dividend paid to ordinary shareholders, net of scrip - -
Finance Expenses - -
Net Cash( used in)/ from Financing activities 2,740,756.00 1,396,459,244.00

Net Increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash & cash equivalents

(51,435,826.06)
153,981,981.70

153,272,231.70
709,750.00

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

102,546,155.64

153,981,981.70

Related notes formed the itegral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

Anuj Keyal Sashank Agrawal
Chairman Director

Kiran K.C.
Director

Narayan Roongta

Director

Binod Sharma Poudel

Raj Kumar Aryal
Chief Executive Officer

Date : 2019/09/01
Place : Kathmandu, Nepal

Kamal Raj Gautam
General Manager

Hari Mani Acharya, FCA
Proprietor

H. Acharya & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Finance Head
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year 2017/18

CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

General Information of Reporting Entity

Sun Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited (‘the company') is a public limited company incorporated
in Nepal with registration number of 1030/064/65 on 2064/06/29. The operating license to operate as
insurer was obtained on 2074/04/18 with license Number 13/074 . However, the ordinary shares of the
company are yet to be listed. The registered office of the company is located at Kamaladi Kathmandu-1
The company has been promoted by M/S.0m Chao Biro Feed Industries Pvt. Ltd, Mr.Roshan K.C, M/S.
Kalika Investment Pvt. Ltd, M/S. Bagmati Ink Pvt. Ltd, M/S. Harvest Investment Pvt. Ltd, Ms. Babita Kumari
Agarwal etc.

The company has currently strong branch network of 21 including 54 sub branches in operation
throughout the country.

The company is engaged in providing the products such as Dhana laxmi Jeevan Beema, Nabikaran Myadi
Jeevan Beema, Samuhik Myadi Jeevan Beema, Limited payment endowment, Bal Sambriddha Jeevan
Beema, Single premium plan, Endowment Assurance Plan, Endowment cum Whole Life Assurance.

The main objective of company is to provide the life insurance service throughout the country with the
vision of providing "Security, Education and Prosperity For All".

Responsibility For Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements of
the company as per the provisions of the Companies Act 2063, the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS), and Insurance Act 2049. The responsibility of the Directors in relation to the financial statements
is set out in detail in the Statement of Directors' Responsibility report in the annual report.

Statement Of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance Nepal Financial Reporting Standards issued

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Nepal;

the applicable laws; Insurance Act, 2049; Insurance Regulation, 2049; Company Act, 2063 and Directives

on Preparation of Financial Statements issued by Insurance Board, 2065.

These Financial Statements include the following components:

n A Statement of Financial Position providing information on the financial position of the company
as at the year end;

u An Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income providing information on the
financial performance of the company for the year under review;

[ ] A Statement of Cash Flows providing information to the users, on the ability of the company to
generate cash and cash equivalents and the needs of the entity to utilize those cash flows;

[ ] A Statement of Changes in Equity depicting all changes in shareholders' funds during the year
under review of the company;

u Notes to the Financial Statements comprising Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory
Information.

Reporting Period and Approval Of Financial Statements

The company follows the Nepalese Financial Year based on Nepalese Calendar. The company has
prepared the Financial Statements that comply with NFRS applicable for the period ending on 16th July
2018 with comparative period data as at and for the year ending 15 July 2017 as described in its
accounting policies. Since this is the first NFRS based Financial Statement the Statement of Financial
Position has been prepared also for the transition date i.e. As on 16 July 2016. The accompanied Financial
Statements have been adopted by the Board of Directors on its board meeting held on 30-06-2018 and
have been recommended for approval by shareholders in the 2nd Annual General Meeting.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

21

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Basis of Presentation of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements for the year ended 16th July 2018, has been prepared in accordance with
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS). Where NFRS does not contain clear guidance governing
the accounting treatment of certain transactions, including those that are specific to insurance and
reinsurance products, NFRS permits reference to another comprehensive body of accounting principles
that uses a similar conceptual framework. The company's accounting policies for insurance and
reinsurance contracts are therefore based on those developed by the Insurance Board before the
adoption of NFRS 4 in areas where NFRS 4 did not include specific requirements. Before the adoption
of NFRS 4, the company typically applied Generally Accepted Accounting Principles pronouncements
issued by the Institution of Chartered Accountants of Nepal on insurance and reinsurance contracts.
Any changes to such pronouncements subsequent to this adoption are not reflected in the company's
accounting policies.

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting in accordance of
NFRS read along with the approved carve-outs. Historical cost convention was used for financial
instruments measurement and recognition except otherwise required by NFRS. Where, other method(s),
other than historical costs, such as fair value has been applied, these have been disclosed in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Functional And Presentation Currency

Items included in the Financial Statements of the company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the company operates (the Functional Currency).
These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees(NPR), the company's Functional and
Presentation Currency.

There was no change in the company's Presentation and Functional Currency during the year under
review.

Materiality and Aggregation

Each item which is similar in nature is presented separately if material. Items of dissimilar nature or
function are presented separately unless they are immaterial as permitted by the Nepal Accounting
Standard NAS 1 on 'Presentation of Financial Statements'.

Comparative Information

The presentation and classification of assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements of the previous
year have been amended, where relevant for better presentation and to be comparable with those of
the current year.

Significant Accounting Convention, Judgments, Estimates And Assumptions

The Financial Statements of the Insurer have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting except the
cash flow information which is prepared, on a cash basis, using indirect method. The Financial Statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Insurer is required to apply the accounting policies that are most appropriate for the circumstance
and operating environment. NFRS requires the company to exercise judgment in making choice of
specific accounting policies and accounting estimates. The insurer, while complying with the reporting
standards, makes critical accounting judgment as having potentially material impact on the Financial
Statements. Description of such estimates and significant accounting policies has been given in the
relevant sections wherever they have been applied. These policies are consistently applied to all the
years presented, except for the changes in accounting policies disclosed specifically. The underlying
assumption made while making accounting estimates are periodically reviewed and such revision are
recognized in the period in which the estimates is revised and are applied prospectively.

In preparation of these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Insurer's accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual result may differ from these estimates. Disclosures
of the accounting estimate have been included in the relevant section of the notes whenever the
estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if
any.
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2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial year are included as follows;

Critical Accounting Estimates / Judgments

a. Valuation of insurance contract liabilities / Life Insurance Fund

b Measurement of defined benefit obligations: Key actuarial assumptions

C. Impairment test: Key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts

d Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: Key assumptions about the likelihood
and magnitude of an outflow of resources

e. Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses

f. Determination of the fair value of financial instruments

g. Liability Adequacy Test

Presentations

The Financial Statements have been presented in the nearest Nepalese Rupees (NPR). For presentation of
the Statement of Financial Position, assets and liabilities have been bifurcated into current and non-current,
by their respective maturities and are disclosed in the notes based on cost benefit analysis for such
bifurcation. All assets apart from Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets and Deferred Taxes
Assets are taken as current assets unless specific additional disclosures is made in the notes for current
and non-current distinction. All liabilities apart from Provision, Insurance Contract Liabilities are taken as
current liabilities unless specific additional disclosures is made in the notes for current and non-current
distinction.

The Statement of Profit or Loss has been prepared using classification "by nature" method. The cash flow
from operation within the Statement of Cash Flows have been prepared using the Direct Method.

Change in accounting policies

The Insurer has applied amendments to standards for the first time during the year ended 16 July 2018.The
insurer has prepared the statement of financial position for transition date by reclassifying item from
previous GAAP to NFRS as required by NFRS and applying NFRS in measurement of recognized assets and
liabilities.

Reporting Pronouncements

The Insurer has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by Accounting
Standard Board (ASB) as effective on September 13, 2013. The NFRS confirm, in all material respect, to
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB).

However the Institution of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) vide its notice dated 20 September 2018
has resolved that Carve-outs in NFRS with Alternative Treatment and effective period shall be provided to
the Insurer by the Regulatory Body on the recommendation of Accounting Standard Board (ASB).
Details of carve out provided are as follows:

NAS 17: Lease
In para 33, Lease payment under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expenses on a straight line
basis over the lease term unless either:

a. Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit even if the
payments to the lessors are not on that basis ,or
b. The payments to the lessors are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to

compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary
because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

NAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

In para 2, if an entity's interim financial report is described as complying with NFRSs, it must comply with
all of the requirements of the standards. Para 19 requires certain disclosures in that regard. However, an
entity shall not require to restate its corresponding previous interim period balance if it is impracticable to
restate.

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective
As per the guidelines of the ICAN, When International Accounting Standard Board revises, amends or
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withdraws International Accounting Standards, IFRSs, IFRIC or SIC, such revisions, amendments and
withdrawals shall accordingly be treated as effected with immediate revision, amendment and withdrawal
in NFRS by ASB as well, to the extent not in conflict with existing National laws. The standards that are
issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Insurer's Financial Statements are disclosed
below. The insurer intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS.
Either a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is required for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, when the IASB finalizes their amendments to defer the
effective date of IFRS 15 by one year. These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
Insurer.

IFRS 16 Leases

Under the new standard, the accounting treatment of leases by lessees will change fundamentally
because it eliminates the current dual accounting model for lessees, which distinguishes between on-
balance sheet finance leases and off-balance sheet operating leases. Instead, there is a single, on-balance
sheet accounting model that is similar to current finance lease accounting. IFRS 16 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with early application permitted if IFRS 15 is also adopted.
The Insurer plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date and will further investigate
the implications in the near future.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contract

IFRS 17 established the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of
insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. The objective of the standard is to ensure that an
entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents those contracts. IFRS 17 was issued in May
2017 and applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. IFRS 17 provides
comprehensive guidance on accounting for insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary
participation features. For short-term life insurance contracts IFRS 17 introduces mandatory discounting
of loss reserves as well as a risk adjustment for non-financial risk, for which confidence level equivalent
disclosure will be required. Further, IFRS 17 will change the presentation of insurance contract revenue,
as gross written premium will no longer be presented in profit or loss. Due to the strong interaction
between underlying assets held and the measurement of direct participating insurance contracts, the
Insurer decided to use the option to defer the full implementation of IFRS 9 until IFRS 17 becomes
effective on January 1, 2021.

IFRS 17 is expected to have a significant impact on accounting for life insurance contracts as well as on
the presentation of insurance contract revenue in the financial statements.

IFRS 9- Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 established the principles for the recognition, measurement and classification of financial
instruments within the scope of the standard. NFRS 9 has been issued but is not effective until further
notified. However, the insurer has elected to apply the requirement of NFRS 9 for the classification of
Financial Instruments only.

Limitation of NFRS Implementation
If the information is not available and the cost of develop would exceed the benefit derived, such
exception to NFRS Implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective section.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

31

Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair value at the end of the reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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The following balances are mixed in nature (including both current and non-current portions): placement
with bank and financial institutions, staff loans, agent loans, reinsurers' share of reserves for insurance
contracts, deferred acquisition costs, other assets, liabilities for investment contracts, reserves for losses
and loss adjustment expenses, future life policyholder benefits, policyholder contractual deposits and
other funds and other liabilities.

Going Concern

The Board of Directors have made an assessment of Entity's ability to continue as a going concern and
satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore,
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Entity's ability
to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it.
Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Summary of significant accounting policies have been disclosed along with the relevant individual notes
in the subsequent pages. The accounting policies presented with each note have been applied consistently
by the insurer.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement

The insurer applies the requirements of the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 16 on 'Property, Plant
and Equipment' in accounting for its owned assets which are held and used in the provision of services
or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used for more than one year.

Initial Costs

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured
at its cost. Except for land and buildings, the company applies the cost model for all property, plant and
equipment and records at cost of purchase together with any incidental expenses thereon, less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The Insurer as being not VAT
registered entity booked VAT paid of property, plant and equipment as a cost of Property, Plant and
Equipment.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the following:

u The cost of materials and direct labor;

u Any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their
intended use;

u When the company has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located;
and

u Capitalized borrowing costs.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part
of that equipment. When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant or equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
part will flow to the Insurer and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognized
in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Similarly, repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred. The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of
the assets when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the most recently assessed
standard of performance of the existing assets will flow to the Insurer and the renovation replaces an
identifiable part of the asset. Major renovations are depreciated during the remaining useful life of the
related asset.
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Depreciations

Depreciation is recognized in the Statement of profit or loss on a straight - line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment since this most closely reflects
the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Land is
not depreciated. Company has made change in accounting estimate in respect of its deprecation method
from Written Down Value Method to Straight Line Method in comparison to old GAAP for the transition
period.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Class Basis
Office furniture 5 years
Furniture and fittings 5 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Impairment of property plant and equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated
future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices, market
demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors. Any
subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above-mentioned factors could impact the
carrying value of assets.

De-recognition

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment shall be de-recognized:

- On disposal, or

- When no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognized in 'other
income' in the Statement of profit or loss.

Intangible Assets

Initial Recognition

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset
will flow to the Insurer and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably in accordance with the Nepal
Accounting Standard - NAS 38 on 'Intangible Assets'.

Acquired intangible assets are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
as intended by management. These costs are amortized over its estimated useful life determined by
the management. Following initial recognition, these assets are stated in the Statement of Financial
Position at cost, less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

The intangible asset of the company as at end of fiscal year is computer software and branding. The
computer software are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred and bring to use the specific
software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized where it is probable that
it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized
on the basis of the expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as
an expenses as incurred.

Amortization

The intangible assets are amortized over the useful life of intangible assets which the Insurer has
considered as 3 years for software and 5 years for other intangible assets. The amortized cost on a
straight-line basis is charged to the Statement of profit or loss over its estimated useful life, from the



<,
)‘Z A AATA

SUNLIFE

35

date on which it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and comparative
periods is five years.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate.

Assessment of Impairment of Intangible Assets

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an
asset's carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written
down immediately.

The management has assessed the potential impairment loss of intangible assets as at 16th July 2018.
Based on the assessment, no impairment provision is required to be made in the financial statements
as at the reporting date in respect of intangible assets.

Capitalization of Borrowing Costs
There were no capitalized borrowing costs of the acquisition of intangible assets during the Year.

De-recognition

The carrying amount of intangible assets shall be de-recognized:

- On disposal, or

- When no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of intangible asset (calculated as the difference between the
net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognized in 'other income' in the
Statement of profit or loss.

Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities
Financial asset is a financial instrument. As per NFRS 9 "Financial Instrument" ,Financial Instrument is
any contract that gives rise to both a financial instrument of one enterprise and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another enterprise.

3.5.1 Classification
Financial Assets
The company classifies the financial assets under following three categories based on NFRS 9:

Financial Assets at amortized cost

The financial assets is categorized as financial assets at amortized cost when the assets are held
under the business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flow and the
contractual cash flow categorized solely payment of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss

The financial assets is categorized as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss when
the financial assets do not meet the amortized cost criteria and when the irrevocable designation
at the initial recognition to recognized financial assets through profit or loss has been made.

Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

The financial assets i.e. investment in equity instruments can be categorized as financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income when the financial assets do not meet the
amortized cost criteria and when the irrevocable designation at the initial recognition is made
to recognized financial assets through other comprehensive income.

3.5.2 Initial recognition and measurement

The Insurer initially recognizes a financial asset in its Statement of Financial Position when, and
only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. The transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issues of financial instruments(other than
financial instruments through profit or loss) are added or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets, as appropriate, on the initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately
in Statement of Profit or Loss. The company thus has initially recognized interest receivable,
time deposit with bank and financial institutions etc. on the date when they are originated i.e.
date when the Insurer has become party to the contractual provision of the instruments.
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Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instruments
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on the effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at Fair value through profit and loss.

Subsequent Measurement
Financial Assets classified at amortized cost on initial recognition is subsequently measured at
amortized cost using effective interest method.

Financial Assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent
changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss whereas of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

De-recognition

Financial Assets are derecognized when the right to receive cash flows from the assets have expired
or where the company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If substantially
all the risks and rewards have been retained nor transferred and the Insurer has retained control,
the assets continue to be recognized to the extent of the Insurer's continuing involvement.

Financial Liabilities
The Insurer classifies the financial liabilities as follows:

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial Liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or
are designated at fair value through Profit or Loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost are
directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.
Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized at Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value through profit or loss are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

Initial recognition and measurement

The Insurer initially recognizes a financial liability in its Statement of Financial Position when, and
only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. The transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issues of financial instruments(other than financial
instruments through profit or loss) are added or deducted from the fair value of the financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on the initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately
in Statement of Profit or Loss. The Insurer thus has initially recognized interest receivable, time
deposit with bank and financial institutions etc. on the date when they are originated i.e. date
when the Insurer has become party to the contractual provision of the instruments.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial Liability classified at amortized cost on initial recognition is subsequently measured at
amortized cost using effective interest method.

Financial Liabilities classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent

changes in fair value of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss.

De-recognition
Financial Liabilities are derecognized when they are extinguished. A financial liability is extinguished
when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired.
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Determination of Fair Value

Assets and liabilities are carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been
classified into three levels according to the observability of the significant inputs used to
determine the fair values as per NFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. Changes in the observability
of significant valuation inputs during the reporting period may result in a transfer of assets and
liabilities within the fair value hierarchy. The Insurer recognizes transfers between levels of the
fair value hierarchy when there is a significant change in either its principal market or the level
of observability of the inputs to the valuation techniques as at the end of the reporting period.

The Insurer uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) price in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on observable market data.

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Insurer shall assesses whether there is objective evidence that a
financial assets or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence
demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the assets and that
the loss event has an impact on the future cash flow of the asset(s) that can be estimated
reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include:

4, Counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its obligation,

5. The disappearance of an active market for a security,

6. Observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment
status of debtors or issuers in the group or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults in the group,

7. Indication that the industry in which the debtors has operated has been facing negative
conditions affecting borrower adversely and borrower has not been able to adopt the
mitigating actions,

8. Debtors or key management personnel of the debtors are out of contract and cannot
be located,

9. The Insurer has initiated the legal actions of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of
the counterpart,

10.  Incase of investment in equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value
below its cost,

11.  Other.

3.5.10 Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Insurer considers evidence of impairment for financial assets and investment securities
measured at amortized cost at both specific asset and collective level. The insurer first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exist for financial assets that are individually
significant and that are not individually significant are assessed on collectively.

If there is objective evidence on that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use
of allowance account and the amount of loss is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss

All individually significant financial assets and investment securities measured at amortized
cost found not to be specifically impaired and those that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together with similar risk characteristics.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized costs are calculated as difference between
the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset's original effective rate of interest.
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If in the subsequent year, the amount of estimated impairment loss increase or decrease because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment

losses is increased or decreased by adjusting the allowance account. If a write off is later recovered,
the recovery is recognized in the "Other Operating Income".

3.5.11 Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial Assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of
Financial Position when, only when, the Insurer has a legal right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under NFRS, or for gains
and losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Insurer's trading activity.

Income Tax
Income Tax comprises of current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or
loss except that they relate to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current Income Tax

Income Tax Expenses comprises current tax provision, the net change in the deferred tax assets or
liability in the year and under/over provision made in the previous year. Current tax provision means
the amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the prevailing Income Tax Act 2058
and the rules framed thereunder. Income tax rate applicable to life insurance company is 25%. Current
tax is based on the taxable profit for the year.

Current Tax Assets/Liability
The amount of current tax assets/lability has been booked by netting off advance income tax with the
provision for taxation framed.

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of timing difference
between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and operating loss
carry forward. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted or substantively
enacted tax rates at the reporting date. Deferred Tax Assets are recognized only to the extent there is
reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in future. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and appropriately adjusted to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain
to be realized.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This includes the cash on hand, cash on vault, balance with other banks and financial institutions which
are used by the Insurer for management of its short-term commitment. The Insurer has recognized
cash equivalents as short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to cash without
the significant risk of changes in value.

Such cash and cash equivalent are carried at their carrying amount. These assets have been classified
as financial assets and subsequently measure at amortized costs.

Share Capital

Financial Instruments issued are classified as equity where there is no contractual obligation to transfer
cash, other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net of taxes from the
proceeds. Dividend on ordinary shares are recognized in equity in the period in which they are declared.
The Insurer has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity instruments. Incremental external
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of these shares are recognized in equity, net of tax.

Share Premium

Share premium is the amount received by a Insurer over and above the face value of its shares. The
Insurer has issued the share at the face value hence there is no share premium till the end of fiscal
year.
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3.10 Reserves

3.1

The reserves include the regulatory and the free reserves.

Catastrophic Reserves

There is a regulatory requirement to set aside 10% of the profit available for distribution to the
catastrophic reserve. The reserve is the accumulation of setting aside profit over the years. As per the
Circular No. 61 dated 2075.09.15 Point No. 2(Ja) from Beema Samiti regarding the NFRS implementation,
the life insurance Insurer shall maintain any regulatory reserve under NFRS based financial statement
not being lower than the amount that has been maintained in the financial statement prepared under
directive of Beema Samiti. The catastrophic reserves has been set as equal to the amount that has been
created under financial statement prepared under the directives of Beema Samiti as NFRS profit is lower
than the profit under financial statement prepared under directive of Beema Samiti.

Regulatory Reserve

As per the Circular No. 61 dated 2075.09.15 Point No. 2(Kha) from Beema Samiti regarding the NFRS
implementation, if the profit under NFRS based financial statements is higher than the profit under
financial statements prepared under Beema Samiti directives for the comparative period( FY 2016/17)
and the reporting period (FY 2017/18), then excess profit after adjusting into the retained earning needs
to present separately as regulatory reserve. The profit under NFRS based financial statement for the
reporting period (FY 2017/18) and comparative period( FY 2016/17) is lower than that of financial
statements prepared under Beema Samiti directives, hence excess profit has been shown as regulatory
reserve.

Deferred Tax Reserve

As per the Circular No. 61 dated 2075.09.15 Point No. 2(Ja) from Beema Samiti regarding the NFRS
implementation, the life insurance Insurer shall maintain any regulatory reserve under NFRS based
financial statement not being lower than the amount that has been maintained in the financial statement
prepared under directive of Beema Samiti. The amount of deferred tax assets shall be booked as
deferred tax reserve as no distribution can be made from such amount. The deferred tax assets under
NFRS is greater than that is required under financial statement prepared under directive of Beema
Samiti hence deferred tax reserve has been created for all such deferred tax assets under NFRS by
deducting from retained earnings.

Fair Value Reserve

As per the Circular No. 61 dated 2075.09.15 from Beema Samiti regarding the NFRS implementation,
the life insurance company has maintain fair value reserve having 10% of the surplus arising on other
comprehensive income under fair value reserve head.

Retained Earnings
This includes the free accumulated profit available for distribution to shareholders.

Insurance Contract Liabilities

Insurance contracts are defined as those containing significant insurance risk if, and only if, an insured
event could cause an insurer to pay significant additional benefits in any scenario, excluding scenarios
that lack commercial substance, at the inception of the contract. Such contracts remain insurance
contracts until all rights and obligations are extinguished or expires. Contracts can be reclassified to
insurance contracts after inception if insurance risk becomes significant.

Insurance contract liabilities are recognized when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged.
These liabilities are measured using the Gross Premium Method, which is also prescribed by the Beema
Samiti. Under Gross premium method, future cash flows from premium receivables, commission payable,
expected future expenses and all types of benefits payouts are discounted to present value.

Insurance contract liabilities includes the followings:

1. Life Insurance Fund
There is a regulatory requirement to create life insurance fund on the basis of the amount
determined by the actuary. As per the Circular No. 61 dated 2075.09.15 Point No. 2(Cha) from
Beema Samiti regarding the NFRS implementation, the life Insurer shall maintain life insurance
fund under NFRS based financial statement not lower the amount that has been maintained in
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the financial statement prepared under directive of Beema Samiti. Since profit under NFRS
based financial statement before transfer to life insurance fund is lower than the profit under
financial statement prepared under Beema Samiti directives before transfer to life insurance
fund, the amount equal to the life insurance fund maintained in the financial statement prepared
under Beema Samiti directives has been charged to life insurance fund.

2. Unexpired Risk Reserve

As per the financial statement related directive 2066 of Beema Samiti, Clause N0.19.3, in case
of non-valuation of liabilities from actuary, the unexpired risk reserve, in respect of policy having
single premium and for which there is no compulsion to make payment after the expiry of
policy term, the unexpired risk reserve shall be created on the proportionate basis of the term
of policy. The circular No. 61 dated 2075.09.15 Point No. 2(Gha) from Beema Samiti regarding
the NFRS implementation, the unexpired risk reserve under NFRS based financial statement
shall be prepared based on the guidelines of financial statement related directive 2066 of
Beema Samiti hence the amount of unexpired risk reserve under NFRS based financial statement
is equal to the amount that has been created under financial statement prepared under Beema
Samiti directives.

3. Statutory Provision for claim payable
As per the Insurance Regulation, 2049, Rule 15, an amount of one hundred fifteen percent of
the remaining amounts of the payment against the claim made by the insurer before the expiry
of each fiscal year shall be created as provision for claims.

The circular No. 61 dated 2075.09.15 Point No. 2(Cha) from Beema Samiti regarding the NFRS
implementation, the life insurance company shall create the statutory provision for claim of
the amount not lower than the amount that has been mentioned in the Insurance Regulation
and the Directives relating to financial statement of life insurance company. Hence amount
equal to that has been maintained as provision for claim in the Financial Statement prepared
under Beema Samiti directives has been maintained as statutory provision for claim under
NFRS based financial statement.

4. Fair value reserve
As per the Circular No. 61 dated 2075.09.15 from Beema Samiti regarding the NFRS
implementation, the life insurance company shall maintain fair value reserve having 90% of
the surplus arising on other comprehensive income and accordingly shown under Insurance
Contract liabilities.

Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts

Receivables and payables are recognized when due. These include amounts due to and from agents,
brokers and insurance policyholders. If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is
impaired, the Insurer reduces the carrying amount of the insurance receivables accordingly and
recognized that impairment loss in profit or loss. The Insurer gathers the objective evidence that an
insurance receivables is impaired using the same process adopted for loans and receivables.

Provision for outstanding claims are recognized based on the estimated cost of all claims incurred
but not settled at the statement of financial position date.

Provisions

The Insurer recognizes a provision if, as a result of past event, the Insurer has a present constructive
or legal obligation that can be reliably measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit
will be required to settle the obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may but probable will not require on outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation
or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

Provision are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, then
the provision is reversed.
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The provision comprises of the provision for gratuity and the leave encashment.

Revenue

Revenue is the gross inflow of the economic benefits during the period arising from the course of the
ordinary activities of an entity when those inflows result in increase in equity, other than increase
relating to contribution from equity participants. Revenue in recognized to the extent it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Insurer and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue
is not recognized during the period in which its recoverability of income is not probable.

Gross insurance premiums
'Insurance contracts' or 'Investment contracts' depending in the level of insurance risk transferred.

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Insurer (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance
risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders, if a specified
uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders.

Generally, the Insurer determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing the benefits
paid with benefits payable, if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer
financial risk.

Products sold by the Insurer includes protection, participatory and non-participatory contracts.

Gross insurance written premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the period of cover
provided by contracts entered into during the accounting period and are recognized on the date on
which the policy commences. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period for
premiums receivable in respect of business written in prior accounting periods.

Fees and commission income

Commission income from Reinsurer are calculated based on gross premiums reinsured. Commission income
are adjusted so that they are recognized over the period covered by the related policies taking into
consideration the exposure period which they relate. Commission income from Reinsurer has been shown
at gross figure and the unearned commission income from Reinsurer has been shown as other liabilities.

The fees charged to insured for late payment of premium is calculated for daily basis by which the
period for payment has been late.

Commission income from Reinsurer are calculated based on gross premiums reinsured.

Investment income

Investment Income comprises the interest income and other returns on funds invested against investment
according to the Beema Samiti (Insurance Board) guidelines.Interest income is recognized as it accrues
in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Interest income on loans
Interest income on loans comprises interest income on agent loan, staff loan as well as interest income
on placement with bank and financial institutions and bank balance.

Interest income is recognized as it accrues in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Claims and benefits paid

Benefits are recorded as an expenses when they are incurred. Claims arising on maturing policies are
recognized when the claim becomes due for payment. Death claims are accounted for on notification.
Surrenders are accounted for on payments.

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future is recorded when the
premium are recognized. The liability is determined as the sum of the expected discounted value of
the benefits payments and the future administration expenses that are directly related to the contracts,
less the expected discounted value of the theoretical premiums that would be required to meet the
benefits and administration expenses based on the valuation assumptions used( the valuation premiums).
The liability based on assumption as to mortality persistence maintenance expenses and investment
income that are established at the time the contract is issued. A margin for adverse deviations is included
in the assumptions/

Where insurance contracts have a single premium or a limited number of premium payments due over
a significantly shorter period than the period during which benefits are provided, the entire premium
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is recognized on cash basis. The excess of the premiums payable over the valuation premiums is deferred
and recognized as income in line with the decreased of unexpired insurance risk of the contracts in
force or, for annuities in force, in line with the decrease of the amount of future benefits expected to
be paid. The liabilities are recalculated at each reporting date using the assumption established at
inception of the contacts.

Employee Benefits/Personnel Expenses
The employee benefit is categorized under four head as per NAS 19:

1.

Short-term benefits
Short-term employee benefits are those which are expected to be settled within twelve months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services (other than
termination benefits.)

Termination benefits

These are provided in exchange for a termination of employment. This may result from the
entity's decision to terminate employment before the normal retirement date or an employee's
decision to accept the benefits in exchange for the termination.

Post-employment benefits
Those are benefits that are payable after the completion of employment (other than the
termination benefits)

Other long-term employees benefits

The employee benefits other than short-term, post-employment and termination benefits.

The personnel Expenses of the Insurer includes:

- Short term employee benefits which includes salary, allowances, non-monetary benefits etc.

- Post- employment benefits that is payable after the completion of employment which can
be either Defined Contribution Plan or Defined Benefit Plan.

Short term Employment benefits
Short term employment benefits are recognized over the period in which the employees provide
the related services.

Post-employment benefits

A. Defined Contribution Plan
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognized as an employee benefit expense in the income statement in the periods during
which related services are rendered by employees

Employees' Provident Fund

All employees of the Insurer are members of the Employees' Provident Fund (EPF). For
defined contribution plans, the Insurer pays 10% each of the salary monthly, as contribution
to the publicly administered provident fund plans namely Employee Provident Fund
managed by the Employees Provident Fund Nepal on a mandatory basis and such amounts
are charged as Personnel Expenses to Statement of Profit and Loss. The Insurer has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

The Insurer has been operating a provident fund contribution as defined contribution
plan of its employees for the requirement under its staff's byelaws and as required under
Labour Act 2074.

B. Defined Benefit Plans-Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Insurer's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods and discounting that amount to determine its
present value. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method.
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With the adoption of NAS 19 - "Employee Benefits", which became effective from 1 January
2013, the re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial
gains and losses, are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The liability
recognized in the Statement of Financial Position is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of the plan assets. The Insurer's Statement of Profit or Loss
Account is charged with the interest cost, current service cost, past service cost, benefits
paid adjusted with the actuarial gain/loss recognized for the period.

Under the Labor Act, 2074, the liability to an employee arises since the employee commence
to service. The obligation is not externally funded.

Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR).

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchanges
ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange at the statement of financial position date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical exchange rates if held at historical cost,
or year end exchange rates if held at fair value, and the resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in either the statement of profit or loss or shareholders' equity depending on the treatment
of the gain or loss on the assets or liability.

Earning Per Shares

The earning per share is the amount of money each share of stock would receive if all of the profits
were distributed to the outstanding shares at the end of the year. The Insurer measures earning per
share by dividing earning attributable to the equity shareholders for the period by the number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average
number of shares for the relevant period as required by NAS 33 Earning per Share. The earnings
attributable to the ordinary equity holders consists of the earnings of the Insurer after deduction of
all expenses and tax expenses.

Fully diluted shares are the total number of shares that would be outstanding if all the possible sources
of conversion, like convertible bonds and stock options are converted. The Insurer has not issue any
potentially convertible equity instrument hence Earning per Share and Diluted Earnings Per Share are
equal.
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Schedule Forming part of Financial Statement
As on 16 July 2018

4.2 Intangible assets

Amount As NPR

Particulars

Computer Software

Brading

Total

Cost

Balances as at 15th July 2016
Additions during the year
Revaluation

Disposal during the year
Balances as at 15th July 2017
Balances as at 15th July 2017
Additions during the year
Revaluation

Disposal during the year

3,000,000.00

944,680.00

3,944,680.00

Balances as at 16th July 2018

3,000,000.00

944,680.00

3,944,680.00

Accumulated amortization and impairment losses
Balances as at 16th July 2016

Amortization for the year end

Impairment loss

Accumulated amortization on disposals during the year
Change in accounting polices

Balances as at 15th July 2017

Amortization for the year end

Impairment loss

Accumulated amortization on disposals during the year
Change in accounting polices

857,534.00

71,951.00

929,485.00

Balances as at 16th July 2018

857,534.00

71,951.00

929,485.00

Carrying value

Balances as at 16th July 2018

2,142,466.00

872,729.00

3,015,195.00

Balances as at 15th July 2017

Balances as at 15th July 2016
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Schedule Forming part of Financial Statement
As on 16 July 2018

4.3 Financial Investment Amount As NPR
Particulars As at 16 July 2018 As at 15 July 2017 |As at 16 July 2016
Financial Investment at amortized cost 1,520,000,000.00 (1,250,000,000.00
Placement with commercial bank 1,460,000,000.00 | 1,250,000,000.00
Placement with development bank 60,000,000.00
Financial Investment at FVTOCI(4.3.1) 7,650,000.00
Investment in Shares:Civil Bank Limited 7,650,000.00
Financial Assets through profit and loss - -

Total 1,527,650,000.00 | 1,250,000,000.00

The fixed deposit held by the company grouped under financial assets at amortized cost on reporting date have been
earmarked to Beema Samiti pursuant to circular no 33 dated 2066.06.06. Beema Samiti has directed all insurance
companies to earmark investment in the favour of Beema Samitit for investment upto the life fund in order to protect
the interest of policyholders. Accordingly, the original physical certificate of fixed deposit are under the custody of
Beema Samiti.

4.3.1 Details of Financial Investment at FVTOCI Amount As NPR
Particulars As at 16 July 2018 As at 15 July 2017 | As at 16 July 2016
Cost price | Market Price
Investment in Shares -
Quoted - -
Civil Bank Limited 6,850,000 | 7,650,000
Total 6,850,000 | 7,650,000 -

4.4 Loans at amortized costs Amount As NPR

As at 16 July 2016

Particulars As at 16 July 2018 As at 15 July 2017

Financial Assets at amortized cost

Loans to staff 8,092,262.81 -
Concessionary Staff Loan 7,095,179.76 -
Interest free Staff Loans 997,083.06 -
Total 8,092,262.81 = -

4.5 Other Financial Assets at amortized cost Amount As NPR

As at 16 July 2016

Particulars As at 16 July 2018 As at 15 July 2017

Financial Assets at amortized cost

Agent Vehicle loans 4,791,883.00

Interest Receviables in Placement with

Bank and Financial Institutions 1,052,602.74

Refundable Deposit 7,236,750.00 - -
Other Deposit 4,500.00 50,000.00 50,000.00
Other Receivable 200,000.00 - -
Total 13,285,735.74 50,000.00 50,000.00
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Schedule Forming part of Financial Statement

As at 16 July 2018

4.6 Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) Amount As NPR

i ; Temporary

Particulars Carrying Amount Tax Base Difference

2015/16

TOTAL -

Tax Rate 25%

Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) -

2016/17

TOTAL -

Tax Rate 25%

Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets)

2017/18

Property, Plant and Equipment 34,344,797.88 31,827,596.66 (2,517,201.22)
Intangible Assets 3,015,195.00 2,818,722.67 (196,472.33)
Other Financial Liabilities 2,556,665.00 2,556,665.00
Provisions 1,506,897.00 - 1,506,897.00
Concessionary Staff Loan 7,095,179.76 7,667,465.21 572,285.45
Interest free Staff Loans 997,083.06 1,119,876.00 122,792.94
Other Assets 932,898.98 - (932,898.98)
Financial Investment 1,527,650,000.00 | 1,526,850,000.00 (800,000.00)
TOTAL 312,067.87
Tax Rate 25%
Deferred Tax (Liability)/Assets - 78,016.97
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Schedule Forming part of Financial Statement
As at 16 July 2018

4.7 Other Assets

Amount As NPR

Particulars As at 16 July 2018 | As at 15 July 2017 | As at 16 July 2016
Inventory 122,150.00
Advance To Other 325,442.00
Prepaid Expenses 441,426.00
Prepayment-Staff loans 932,898.98
Total 1,821,916.98

4.8 Current Tax Assets

Amount As NPR

Particulars As at 16 July 2018 | As at 15 July 2017 | As at 16 July 2016
Advance Tax 27,299,953.21 1,321,218.11
Provision for Tax - 2,006,198.11
Total 27,299,953.21 684,980.00
4.9 Cash and Cash Equivalents Amount As NPR
Particulars As at 16 July 2018 | As at 15 July 2017 | As at 16 July 2016
Cashin hand 45,379,461.00 - 709,750.00
Balance with Bank and Financial Institutions 57,166,694.64 153,981,981.70
On interest bearing call account 41,911,460.36 -
On non interest bearing current account 15,255,234.28 153,981,981.70 -
Total 102,546,155.64 153,981,981.70 709,750.00
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Schedule Forming part of Financial Statement

As on 16 July 2018

4.11 Share Premium Amount As NPR
e As at 16 July 2018 | As at 15 July 2017 | As at 16 July 2016
Amount Amount Amount

Share Premium

Total

The company has not yet made the public issues and the promoter shares are all issued at par value of Rs.100

4.12 Other Reserves Amount As NPR

Particulars As at 16 July 2018 | As at 15 July 2017 | As at 16 July 2016
Amount Amount Amount

Regulatory/ Statutory Reserves
Catastrophic Reserve 9,390,929.68
Other Reserves 802,911.96
Regulatory Reserve 664,894.99
Fair value reserve 60,000.00
Deferred Tax Reserve 78,016.97
Total (A) 10,193,841.64 -
Free Reserves - - -
Retained Earning 84,101,726.78 5,813,344.32 (205,250.00)
Total (B) 84,101,726.78 5,813,344.32 (205,250.00)
Total (A+B) 94,295,568.42 5,813,344.32 (205,250.00)
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Schedule Forming part of Financial Statement

4.14 Financial liabilities

As on 16 July 2018

Amount in NPR.

Particulars 16 July 2018 15 July 2017 16 July 2016
Sundry Creditors 4,254,079.45 169,322.00 160,000.00
Agent Commission Payable 13,650,373.00
Agent Incentive Payable 19,503,372.00 -
Staff related payable 268,375.00 152,438.00 -
Audit fees payable 144,950.00 24,625.00 5,000.00
Reinsurance payable 5,175,014.00
Payable to policy holders 29,689.00
Payable to Insurance Board 3,367,156.65 -
TDS payable 6,459,315.00 5,026.00
Provident fund payable 35,420.00 32,950.00
Staff gratuity 2,556,665.00 - -
Total 55,444,409.10 384,361.00 165,000.00
4.15 Other liabilities Amount in NPR.
Particulars 16 July 2018 15 July 2017 16 July 2016
Employee Bonus Payable 8,792,931.21
Total 8,792,931.21
4.16 Provisions Amount in NPR.
Particulars 16 July 2018 15 July 2017 16 July 2016
Provision for compensated absence leave 1,506,897.00
Total 1,506,897.00

The provision for staff leave has been booked based on the actuarial valuations.
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Schedule Forming part of Financial Statement

For the year ended 16 July 2018

4.19 Income from investment Amount in NPR.
Particulars 16 July 2018 15 July 2017
Income from fixed deposit of commerical bank 175,752,646.70 8,808,120.66
Income from fixed deposit of development bank 4,792,316.08 -
Total 180,544,962.78 8,808,120.66

4.20 Other income Amount in NPR.
Particulars 16 July 2018 15 July 2017
Effective Rate interest on agent loan 69,923.00
Effective Rate interest on Staff loan 910,499.33
Income from call acccount (interest bearing) 2,257,009.96
Late fee income 844.00
Miscellaneous Income 19.00
Income from Agent Training 10,767.00
Total 3,249,062.29

4.21 Gross benefit and claim paid Amount in NPR.

Gross Claim Reinsurer Share Net Claim
Particulars
16)Jul, 18 15)ul, 17 16Jul, 18 15]Jul, 17 16)Jul, 18 15)ul, 17
Death claim i
Maturity claim -
Partial Maturity claims -
Surrender Value claims -
Total -
4.21.1 Policy-wise details of claim paid Amount in NPR.
Gross Claim Reinsurer Share Net Claim
Particulars
16 Jul, 18 15 Jul, 17 16 Jul, 18 15 Jul, 17 16 Jul, 18 15 Jul, 17

Participating contracts
Endowment Policy

Endowment cum Whole life Policy
Money Back Policy

Money Back cum Whole life Policy
Non participating contracts
Term policy

Total
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Schedule Forming part of Financial Statement
For the year ended 16 July 2018

4.24 Employee benefit expenses Amount As NPR
Particulars 16 July 2018 15 July 2017
Salaries 26,062,447.00 187,261.00
Allowances 29,078,078.00
Dashain Allowance 2,564,354.00
Company Contribution Provident Fund 2,603,692.00
Training Expenses (Staff) 15,000.00
Provision on Pension and Gratuity 2,556,665.00
Provision for compensated absence leave 1,506,897.00
Force Leave Expenses 481,236.00
In-charge Allowance 1,142,234.00
Wages 37,520.00
Concenssionary Interest Benefit 242,069.54
Staff Refreshment 470,464.00
Provision for staff bonus 8,792,931.21 -
Total 75,553,587.75 187,261.00

4.25 Depreciation and Amortization Amount As NPR
Particulars 16 July 2018 15 July 2017
Depreciation on property plant and equipment 4,201,971.00 9,995.24
Amortization of intangible assets 929,485.00 -
Total 5,131,456.00 9,995.24

Refer Note 4.1 and 4.2 for details of depreciation and amortization charged in each class of assets.
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Schedule Forming part of Financial Statement For the year ended 16 July 2018

4.26 Other Operating Expenses Amount in NPR.
Particulars Year ended Year ended
16 July 2018 15 July 2017

Water and Electricity 595,492.00 315.00
Repair and maintenance 1,300,631.00 2,500.00
Repair and Maintenance (Building Maintenance) 662,583.00 2,500.00
Repair and Maintenance (Vehicle Maintenance) 35,310.00 -
Repair and Maintenance (Office Equipment Maintenance) 65,885.00

Repair and Maintenance (Colouring & Other) 536,853.00 -
Communication expenses 2,980,158.85 16,525.00
Communication (Information Technology) 1,439,388.00 14,025.00
Telephone (Land Line) 861,291.85 -
Mobile Expenses 498,548.00 -
Fax - Email Internet 180,931.00 2,500.00
Printing and stationary 2,621,472.00 10,155.00
Printing and stationary (Printed) 1,882,968.00 10,155.00
Printing and Stationary (Table) 515,758.00 -
Printing and Stationary (Photocopy) 120,674.00

Printing and stationary (Misc) 102,072.00 -
Non Capital Office Items (Non Lasting Goods) 2,577,259.00 8,937.00
Transportation 511,728.00 1,500.00
Transportation & Local Conveyance 82,498.00 1,500.00
Postage and Courier 429,230.00 -
Travelling Expenses 4,442,807.00

TADA (Travelling Allowance & Daily Allowance) -Internal 4,442,807.00

TADA (Travelling Allowance & Daily Allowance) -External -

Insurance Expenses 191,137.92

Insurance Premium (Vehicle) 51,599.22

Insurance Premium(Cash In Transit & Vault) 139,538.70

Books and Periodicals 128,853.00

Advertisement and Publicity 81,037.00

Business Promotion 4,298,539.00

Branding Expenses 1,875,000.00

Business Promotion 2,423,539.00 -
Guest Entertainment 206,184.00 25,895.00
Board Meeting Expenses 163,058.00 -
Meeting Allowance (BOD) 136,000.00

Others (BOD) 27,058.00

AGM Expenses 167,685.00 -
Audit Related Expenses 382,574.00 25,000.00
Audit Fee 79,100.00 25,000.00
Internal Audit Fee 271,200.00 -
Auditing Expenses (Other) 32,274.00 -
Bank Charge 17,792.77 9,220.00
Fees and Charges 1,083,834.00 357,894.00
Fee and Charges 1,010,774.00 67,894.00
Renewal & Registration 73,060.00 290,000.00
Policy Stamp 277,280.00 -
Other 17,188,318.50 128,131.00
Office Upkeep & Cleaning 225,860.00 3,245.00
Fuel (Generator) 5,840.00 -
Fuel(Vehicle) 1,025,844.00 -
Fuel (Others) 33,475.00 7,108.00
Corporate Social Responsibility 115,606.00 -
Other Miscellaneous Expenses 3,059.00 50,000.00
Furnishing and Flooring Expenses 53,534.00 -
Product Design Expenses 542,782.50
Computer-Electric-Electronic & Networking Expenses 1,316,115.00

Gardening Exp 63,081.00

Office Programme 1,283,759.00 -
Consultancy Fees 273,000.00 40,000.00
Form and Application Expenses 1,550.00 -
Lease rent expenses 12,244,813.00 27,778.00
Medical fee 862,599.00 -
Total 40,078,440.04 586,072.00
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Schedule Forming part of Financial Statement
For the year ended 16 July 2018

4.27 Earning Per Shares

Basic earnings per share (EPS) amount are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders by
weighted average number of shares outstanding at the end of the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, plus the weighted average number of
ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

The basic earning per share of the company during 2017/18 is Rs 6.32 Since, no other instrument is issued by the
company except common share so, diluted earning per share is also equal to basic earning per share i.e. Rs. 6.32.

Amount As NRS.

Particulars 16 July 2018 15 July 2017
Profit avaliable to equity holder 88,422,224 6,018,594
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 14,000,000 13,972,592
Earning Per Shares 6.32 0.43
Diluted Earning Per Share 6.32 0.43
Weighted Average Number of Shares 16-Jul-18 15-Jul-17
Number of issued shares at the beginning of the year 13,972,592 -
Issue of Fully Paid Shares 27,408 13,972,592
Issue of bonus shares

Issue of right shares - -
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 14,000,000.00 13,972,592
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Schedule Forming part of Financial Statement
For the year ended 16 July 2018

4.28 Related Party Disclosures
Followings are identified as the related parties to the company as per NAS 24" Related Parties Disclosures”:

1. Entities or person having control or joint control over the company i.e. Directors of the company
and their close family members if any:

Name Designation
Mr. Anuj Keyal Chairman

Mr. Kiran K.C Board Member
Mr. Sashank Agrawal Board Member
Mr. Narayan Roongata Board Member

Following payment has been made to board during the Fiscal Year 2017/18

Expenses head Amount

Board Meeting Fee 136,000
Board Meeting Expenses 27,058
Total 163,058

2. Key Managerial Personnel and their close family members,

Name Designation
Mr. Raj Kumar Aryal Acting CEO
Mr. Kamal Raj Gautam General Manager

Following salary and allowance payments has been made to Key Managerial Personnel during
the Fiscal Year 2017/18

Expenses head Amount
Mr.Raj Kumar Aryal 40,14,949
Mr.Kamal Raj Gautam 57,54,669

3. Holding company of the company- No Holding Company

4. Another subsidiary company of holding company- No Subsidiary Company
Company has not conducted transaction with related parties during the year except mentioned
above.
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year 2017/18

5 Disclosures and Additional Information

5.1

5.2

5.2.1

Insurance Contract

Insurance Contracts are defined as those containing significant insurance risk if, and only if, an insured
event could cause an insurer to pay significant additional benefits in any scenario, excluding scenario
that lack commercial substance, at the inception of the contract. Such contracts remain insurance
contracts until all rights and obligations are extinguished or expires. Contract can be reclassified to
insurance contracts after inception if insurance risk becomes significant. In accordance with NFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts, the Insurer has continued to apply the accounting policies it applied in accordance
with pre-changeover GAAP.

Insurance Contracts are defined as those containing significant insurance risk if, and only if, an insured
events could cause an insurer to pay significant additional benefits in any scenario, excluding scenario
that lack commercial substance, at the inception of the contract. Such contracts remain insurance
contracts until all rights and obligations are extinguished or expires. Contract can be reclassified to
insurance contracts after inception if insurance risk becomes significant.

For all the insurance contracts, premiums are recognized as revenue considering the surrender factors
(earned premiums) proportionally over the policy year of coverage. The portion of premium received
on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the statement of financial position date is reported
as the unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission and are gross
of any taxes or duties on premiums.

Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date the Insurer performs a liability adequacy test on its insurance liabilities less
deferred policy acquisition expenses to ensure the carrying value is adequate, using current Estimates
of future cash flows, taking into account the relevant investment return. If that Assessment shows that
the carrying amount of the liabilities is inadequate, any deficiency is recognized as an expense to the
income statement initially by writing off the deferred policy Acquisition expense and subsequently by
recognizing an additional claims liability for claims provisions.

Risk Management Framework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Insurer's
risk management structure.

The Insurer has as per the requirement of Section 14 of Corporate Governance Directive, 2075 issued
by Insurance Board has formed Investment, Risk Management and Solvency Committee and also an
Audit Committee to review the risk management policies and processes. The committees also oversees
how management monitors compliance with risk management policies and procedures and reviews
the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks the Insurer face. These
committees report regularly to the Board of Directors on their activities.

The overriding objectives of the Insurer's risk management framework is to enhance its capital base
through competitive earnings growth and to protect capital against inherent business risks. This means
the Insurer accept certain levels of risk in order to generate returns and the Insurer manages the leve!
of risk assumed through enterprise wide risk management policies and procedures. |dentified risks are
assessed as to their potential financial impact and as to their likelihood of occurrence.

Insurance Risk

The risk under any insurance contract is the possibility that the insured events occurred and the
uncertainty that the Insurer will have sufficient assets to satisfy the benefits payable under the contract.
By the nature of insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore unpredictable. The principal risk
the Insurer faces under such contract is that the actual claims and benefits payments exceed the carrying
amount of insurance liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual
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benefits paid are greater than originally estimated, and subsequent development of long term claim.
The Insurer has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks
accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large proportion of risks to reduce
the variability of the expected outcome. Factors that aggravate insurance risk includes lack of risk
diversification in terms of type and amount of risk, geographical location and type of industry covered.

Frequency

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors. The most significant are the
increasing level of awards for the damages suffered as a result of exposures to various causes of loss
events. The Insurer's underwriting strategy is intended to ensure that risk underwritten are well diversified
in terms of the type of risk and the level of insured benefits. The Insurer manages this risk through the
review of its underwriting and reinsurance program on an annual basis in order to ensure that there
is adequate mitigation against this risk.

Concentration of Insurance Risk
The following table discloses the concentration of insurance risk by the class of business in which the
contract holder operates and included in terms of the policy.

Product Gross Premium | Ceded to Reinsurer Net Premium
Endowment Policy 184,938,197.00 3,886,538.00 | 181,051,659.00
Endowment Cum Whole Life Policy 48,617,291.00 643,256.00 47,974,035.00
Money Back Policy 60,559,083.00 10,306.00 60,548,777.00
Money Back Cum Whole Life Policy 2,854,854.00 766,695.00 2,088,159.00
Term Policy 6,240.00 912.00 5,328.00
Total 296,975,665.00 5,307,707.00 | 291,667,958.00

Credit Risk

The credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Insurer if a customer or counterparty to a financial instruments
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Insurer's receivables from customers
and reinsurers, investment securities and cash and cash equivalent. The concentration of credit risk is also
monitored to minimize the Insurer's exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvency. The assets
of the Insurer that are exposed to credit risk and the measure for mitigation is as mentioned below:

The credit risk associated with cash equivalents is mitigated by the facts that investment and cash
transactions are limited to high credit financial institutions. The Insurer has policies that limit the amount
of credit exposures to any one financial institutions.

The Insurer has no significant concentration of credit risk on its investments. The Insurer minimizes its

credit risk by limiting its investment primarily between counterparties to Government and financial
institutions. All investments are held with well-established financial institutions.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The credit risk of the Insurer has been presented below:

. Past Due| Past |[PastDue
Neither Past Due .
Items . Less90 |91to180| and Carrying Amount
Nor Impaired .

Days days |Impaired
Fixed Deposits 1,520,000,000.00 - - - | 1,520,000,000.00
Loans to employees 8,092,262.81 - - - 8,092,262.81
Loans to agents 4,791,883.00 . - 7 4,791,883.00
Deposit 7,241,250.00 - - - 7,241,250.00
Interest Receivables 1,052,602.74 - - - 1,052,602.74
Other receivables 200,000.00 - - - 200,000.00
Advance To Other 325,442.00 - - - 325,442.00
Total 1,541,703,440.55 - - - | 1,541,703,440.55
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5.2.3 Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Insurer will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Insurer's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Insurer's reputation. In respect of catastrophic
events, the Insurer is exposed to liquidity risk associated with the timing difference between cash flows

and expected reinsurance recoveries to meet its insurance liability obligations.
The Insurer's liquidity management process as carried out within the Insurer is monitored by the
accounts department and includes:

[ ] Cash flows is monitored weekly through cash summary reports.

[ ] Maintaining the portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can easily be liquidated
as protection against any unforeseen interruption to cash flows

[ ] Optimize cash returns on investment and

[ ] Monitoring statement of financial position liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory

requirements.
The table summarizing the liquidity risk has been presented below:

ltems Less than 30-90 90-180 180-360 More than Total
30 Days Days Days Days 360 days

Assets

Financial investment at amortized cost - - 1120,000,000.00 {1,170,000,000.00 {230,000,000.00 | 1,520,000,000.00
Financial investment at FVTOC 7,650,000.00 7,650,000.00
Loans at amortized costs 203,893.83 | 412,899.17 269,171.49 131290715 | 5893,391.17 8,092,262.81
Other Financial Assets at 8,627,720.97 | 269,781.47 409,623.70 838,023.40 | 3,140,586.21 13,285,735.74
amortized cost

Other Assets 914,558.52 |  51,081.05 76,621.57 145,936.53 633,719.30 1,821,916.98
Cash and cash equivalent 102,546,155.64 - 102,546,155.64
Liabilities -
Insurance contract liabilities 158,094,228.49 | 158,094,228.49
Other financial liabilities 49,375,637.45 | 397,400.00 | 2,969,756.65 144,950.00 | 2,556,665.00 |  55,444,409.10
Other liabilities 8,792,931.21 8,792,931.21
Provisions 401,973.00 | 1,104,924.00 1,506,897.00
Total 165,256,223.29 |1,131,161.68 {123,725,173.42 | 1,172,843,790.07 |417,866,445.39 | 1,877,234,536.97

5.2.4 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchanges rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Insurer's income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimizing the return of risk.

Market risk are evaluated on an ongoing basis by the Board of Directors through discussions and the
review of market developments and trends.

Management also proactively anticipates likely development in their markets via monitoring or regional
and international trends via industry publications. Based on the review peiformed, there has been no
changes to the Insurer's exposures to market risks or the manner in which it manages the risk.

a. Interest Rate Risk
Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rate. The Insurer's exposure to interest rate
risk is solely to the extent that interest-earnings assets mature or re-price at different times or
in differing amounts. The Insurer addresses this risk by concentrating its investments on risk-
free investments such as fixed interest rate deposit.

b. Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument wili fluctuate due to
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changes in foreign exchange rates. The Insurer's exposures to foreign currency risk results from
the settlement of the amount to the reinsurer and the movement in the exchange rate of Nepalese
currency with respective foreign currency.

c. Equity Price Risk
Price Risk is the risk that the value of the financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market prices, whether caused by factors specific to any individual investment, its issuer or
all factors affecting all financial instruments traded in the market. The Insurer is not exposed to
significant price risk as it does not have any equity securities at year end.

5.2.5 Operational risk

5.3

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a variety of causes associated with the
Insurer's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of corporate governance. Operational risks arise from all of the Insurer's
operations.

The Insurer's objective is to manage operational risks as to balance the avoidance of financial losses
and damages to the Insurer's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures
that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational
risk is assigned with senior management. This responsibility is supported by the development of overall
standards for the management of operational risks in the following areas:

Requirement for appropriate segregation of duties, including authorization of transactions;
Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

Documentation of controls and procedures;

Development of Contingency plans;

Training and professional development of staff; and

Ethical and business standards

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Insurer's risk and financial management framework is to protect the
Insurer's shareholders from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of financial performance
objectives, including failing to exploit opportunities. Key Management recognizes the critical importance
of having efficient and effective risk management systems in place.

The Insurer has established the following capital management objectives, policies and approach to
managing the risks that affect its capital position:

[ | To maintain the required level of stability of the Insurer thereby providing a degree of security
to policy holders;

| To allocate capital efficiently and support the development of business by ensuring that returns
on capital employed meet the requirements of its capital providers and of its shareholders ;

| To retain financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity and access to a range of capital markets;

| To provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance and investment contracts
with the level of risk; and

| To maintain strong credit ratings and healthy capitai ratios in crder to support its business

objectives and maximize shareholder's value.
Externally imposed capital requirements are set by the Insurance Board. These requirements are put
in place to ensure sufficient solvency margins.

The Insurer is registered under Insurance Act, 2048 as required by the Act and has not met the required
minimum paid up capital as the Insurer has not yet made the public issues of its shares.

Solvency ratios are established on the basis of risk assessment. The Insurer is required to meet minimum
margin of solvency. The insolvency is the inability of the Insurer to pay its debt if, at any time, the value
of its admissible assets does not exceeds its liabilities by such amount as the insurance Board may
prescribed. As on 16 July, 2018, the Insurer has lower than the minimum margin of solvency required
under the Act. The required solvency margin as per the Beema Samiti guidelines is 1.5 to fall under
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routine action categories while Insurer has the solvency margin of 1.117 which fall under greater
supervision categories.

The Insurer seeks to optimize the structure and sources of capital to ensure that it consistently maximizes
returns to the shareholders and policyholders.

The Insurer's approach to managing capital involves managing assets, liabilities and risks in a coordinated
way, assessing shortfall between reported and required capital levels on a regular basis and taking
appropriate actions to influence the capital position of the Insurer in the light of changes in economic
conditions and risk characteristics. An important aspects of the Insurer's overall capital management
process is the setting of target risk adjusted rates of return, which are aligned to performance objectives
and ensure that the Insurer is focused on the creation of value for shareholders.

Contingent Assets and Commitment

In the normal course of business, the Insurer is not involved in any legal proceedings incidental to its
operations. There are no outstanding litigations matters for which the outcome is uncertain at the
reporting date.

Events after Reporting Period

Management has evaluated the need for disclosures and adjustments resulting from subsequent events
upto the date the financial statements are authorized for issue. There were no subsequent events
requiring disclosures and/or adjustments.

Fair value hierarchy

Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified into
three levels according to the observability of the significant inputs used to determine the fair values.
Changes in the observability of significant valuation inputs during the reporting period may results in
a transfer of assets and liabilities within the fair value hierarchy. The Insurer recognizes transfer between
levels of the fair value hierarchy when there is significant change in either its principal market or the
level of observability of the inputs to the valuation techniques as at the end of the reporting period.

Level 1: Fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued models
where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3: Portfolis are those where at least one input which could have a significant effect on the
instrument's valuations, is not based on observable market data.

Particulars 2017 /18 2016 /17 2015/ 16
Financial Assets - -
Level 1 - -
Investment in quoted shares 7,650,000.00 - -
Level 2 - -
Investment in unquoted shares - -
Level 3 - -
Cash 45,379,461.00 - -
Balance with other Banks 57,166,694.64 - -
Loans at amortized cost 8,092,262.81 - -
Placement with bank and financial institution 1,520,000,000.00 - -
Other Financial Assets 13,285,735.74 - -
Total 1,651,574,154.19 - -
Financial Liabilities - -
Level 1 - -
Level 2 - -
Level 3 - -
Other Financial Liabilities 55,444,409.10 - -
Total 55,444,409.10 - -
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5.7 Bonus Rate to Insurance Policy Holders

The declared and interim bonus rate as per actuarial valuation to policy holders on thousand sum
assured per annum is as under:

S.N. Product Tenure of Policy Bonus Rs.

1 | Endowment Policy 0-9 20
10-14 25

15-19 35

20-24 50

25 and above 70

2 | Endowment cum whole life Policy 0-9 20
10-14 25

15-19 35

20-24 50

25 and above 70

3 | Money Back Policy 10-14 20
15-19 25

20-24 30

4 | Money Back cum Whole life Policy 15-19 35

5.8 Notes to NFRS 1"First Time adoption of Nepal Financial Reporting Standard"

"The Financial Statements for the year ending 16 July 2018 are the first set of Financial Statements prepared under NFRS by the
company which includes the Comparative Financial Statements and Statement of Financial Position of transition date beside the
complete set of Financials Statements for the Fiscal Year 2016/17 under NFRS.

The adoption of NFRS has been carried out in accordance with NFRS 1, First-time Adoption of NFRS. NFRS 1 requires that all NFRS
and interpretations that are issued and effective for the first NFRS financial statements be applied retrospectively and consistently
for all financial years presented. Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with NFRS for year
ended 16 July, 2018, together with the comparative information as at and for the year ended 15 July, 2017 and the opening NFRS
Balance Sheet as at 16 July, 2016 the date of transition to NFRS. Significant changes form the accounting policies adopted under
previous GAAP (i.e. Beema Samiti directives and Nepal Accounting Standard) and the adoption of NFRS has been disclosed in the
respective segments including the impact. NFRS 1 “First-Time Adoption of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards allows the first time
adopters certain exemption from the retrospective application of certain NFRS, when such exemption has been adopted same has
been disclosed in respective segment."

Exemptions

NFRS 1 has provided various optional exemption from some requirement of other NFRS.

Deemed Cost

The entity has not used fair value on date of transition as deemed cost. Rather, the carrying amount under previous GAAP of an

item of property, plant and equipment has been considered as deemed cost on date of transition.

A. Transition to NFRS - Reconciliations

The following reconciliations provide the explanations and quantification of the differences arising from the transition from Previous

GAAP to NFRS in accordance with NFRS 1:

. Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Position as at 16 July, 2018.

Il Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive income for the year ended on 16 July 2018.

lll.  Reconciliation of Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 16 july, 2018.

IV.  Reconciliation of change in equity as at 16 July, 2018, 15 July, 2017 and 15 July, 2016.

V. Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Position as at 15 July, 2017.

VI, Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive income for the year ended 15 July, 2017 and 16 july
2018.

VII. Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Position as at 15 July, 2016.
Previous GAAP information has been reclassified/regrouped in accordance with NFRS, wherever necessary, based on the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 15 July ,2017 and 15 July, 2016.
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

I. Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Position reported as on

16 July 2018 due to the adoption of NFRS

Amount As NPR
Particulars 15;’5:;;%01' g 16July 2018 | 15 July 2017 | 16 July 2016 Pre";‘;‘jﬁ'?;';gﬁgrteo'
Assets -
Property, plant and equipment 34,344,797.88 34,344,797.88
Intangible assets 3,015,195.00 - 3,015,195.00
Financial Investments 1,527,650,000.00 | 800,000.00 1,526,850,000.00
Loans at amortized costs 8,092,262.81 | (784,677.19) 8,876,940.00
Other Financial Assets at amortized cost 13,285,735.74 13,285,735.74
Deferred Tax Assets 78,016.97 | (338,623.19) 416,640.36
Other Assets 1,821,916.98 | 932,898.98 889,018.00
Current Tax Assets 27,299,953.21 27,299,953.21
Cash and Cash Equivalents 102,546,155.64 - 102,546,155.64
Total Assets 1,718,134,034.22 | 609,598.59 1,717,524,435.64
Equity and liabilities
Equity -
Share Capital 1,400,000,000.00 1,400,000,000.00
Share Premium -
Catastrophic Reserve 9,390,929.68 - 9,390,929.68
Retained earnings 84,101,726.78 | (416,640.37) 84,518,367.14
Other Reserve 802,911.96 | 802,911.96 -
Total equity 1,494,295,568.42 | 386,271.59 1,493,909,296.82
Liabilities -
Insurance Contract liabilities 158,094,228.49 | 540,000.00 157,554,228.50
Deferred Tax Liabilities - -
Financial liabilities 55,444,409.10 55,444,409.10
Other liabities 8,792,931.21 8,792,931.21
Current tax liabilities - -
Provisions 1,506,897.00 | (316,673.00) 1,823,570.00
Total liabilities 223,838,465.80 | 223,327.00 223,615,138.81
Total equity and liabilities 1,718,134,034.22 | 609,598.59 1,717,524,435.64

Reclassification
1. Deferred Tax Assets

The deferred tax assets has been increased due to the cause as mentioned under the notes to reconciliation of statement

of profit or loss of reporting period.

2. Financial Investment

The company has opted the choice of measuring the investment in shares of civil bank as fair value through other
comprehensive income and due to increase in market value of such shares net of taxes the value of financial investment

has been increased.
3. Loans at amortized cost

The loans at amortized cost has decreased due to valuation of staff loans under effective interest method taking market

rate of 10%.
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4. Other Assets
The other assets has been increased because of application of NFRS 9 on such financial instrument on staff loan. Such
increase in represented by remaining portion of prepayment under staff loan for deferring over the remaining term
of loan.

5. Insurance Contract liabilites
The insurance contract liabilities has been increased under NFRS because of Fair value reserved transferred from other
comprehensive income.

6. Other reserve
The other reserve under NFRS arised due to the deferred tax reserve and the fair value reserve arised on equity
instrument measured through OCI.

7. Retained Earning
The cumulative effective of change in statement of profit or loss and transfer to reserve has lead for change in retained
earning under NFRS based financial statement the details of which has been provided under reconciliation of retained
earning.

Remeasurement

1. Property, Plant and equipment
Under the GAAP based financial statement the property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and the vehicle
purchased for use of staff is shown in aggregate as fixed assets but under NFRS based financial statement the property,
plant and equipment intangible assets has been shown as separate line items and the vehicle for the use of staff has
been shown as financial lease assets.

2. Loans at amortized cost
The agent loan and staff loan have been shown as other long term loan under GAAP based financial statement which
has been shown as loans at amortized cost under NFRS based financial statement. Similary interest on call account and
refundable deposit has been shown as other assets under GAAP based financial statement which has been shown as
other financial assets under NFRS based financial statement.

3. Other Assets
The inventory of stamp which is shown as cash and cash equivalent under GAAP based financial statement has been
reclassified under other assets.

4. Current tax assets
The advance income tax booked under head other assets under GAAP based financial statement has been presented
as Current tax assets under NFRS based financial statement.

5. Cash and cash equivalent
The bank balance in interest bearing call account has been shown as short term investment amounting Rs.4,19,11,460
under GAAP based financial statement which has been shown as cash and cash equivalent under NFRS based financial
statement.

6. Insurance contract liabilities
Under GAAP based financial statement the increase in life insurance fund as valuated by the acutary is shown as life
insurance fund in statement of financial position but under NFRS based financial statement it is shown under insurance
contract liabilities. Also the provision for outstanding claim and provision for unexpired risk reserve at year end is shown
as separate line item individually under GAAP based financial statement but NFRS based financial statement it has been
reclassified as insurance contract liabilities.

7. Other financial liabilities

The credit and accurals, agent commission payable, agent incentive payables , employee bonus payable, audit fee and
staff related payable has been shown as other financial liabilities which was previously shown as other liabilities.
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Il. Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss for the Fiscal Year ended
16 July 2018 due to the adpotion of NFRS

Amount As NPR
Particulars Restated 16 July 2018| Re-measurement Pre\qgljzll); 28?; rted
Gross Insurance Premium Revenue 296,975,665.00 296,975,665.00
Insuance Premium ceded to Reinsurer 5,307,707.00 5,307,707.00
Net Insurance Premium Revenue 291,667,958.00 291,667,958.00
Income from investment 180,544,962.78 - 180,544,962.78
Other income 3,249,062.29 390,291.33 2,858,770.96
Total income 475,461,983.07 390,291.33 475,071,691.74
Gross benefit and claim paid
Claims ceded to reinsurer
Gross Insurance Benefits and claims -
Change in insurance contract liabilities 157,554,228.49 157,554,228.49
Agent Expenses 106,083,384.00 106,083,384.00
Regulatory service fee 2,916,679.65 - 2,916,679.65
Employee benefit expenses 75,553,587.75 (74,603.46) 75,628,191.21
Depreciation and Amortization 5,131,456.00 5,131,456.00
Other operating expenses 40,078,440.04 40,078,440.04
Total Expenditure 387,317,775.93 (74,603.46) 387,392,379.39
Profit Before Taxes 88,144,207.13 464,894.79 87,679,312.35
Income Tax Expenses/(Income) (278,016.97) 138,623.39 (416,640.36)
Current Tax Expenses/Income -
Deferred Tax Expenses/ Income 278,016.97 (138,623.39) 416,640.36
Profit for the Year 88,422,224.10 326,271.39 88,095,952.50
Remeasurement

1. Other Income

Other income has been increased increase in interest income of staff while valuating under effective interest method

taking market rate of 10%.
2. Employee Expenses

Personnel Expenses has increased due to concessionary interest benefit provided to staff due to application of effective
interest method to value staff loan taking market rate of interest of 10%.

3. Deferred Tax Income

Under the GAAP based financial statement there arised the deferred tax income in respect of gratuity and leave payment
net of deferred tax expenses on property plant and equipment but under NFRS statement depending on the carrying
amount and the tax base of assets and liabilities generated due to NFRS application, the deferred tax income has been

increase.
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Ill.Reconciliation of Statement of Cashflow as on 16 July 2018 due to the adoption of NFRS Amount As NPR

Particulars 1 6RJTJSI§/a;?J(118 Re-measurement Pre\qgl}zllz zz,lpg i
Cash Flows From Operating Activities - -
Cash Received 299,244,304.96 299,244,304.96
Insurance Premium 296,975,665.00 296,975,665.00
Interest Income On Call Account 2,257,009.96 2,257,009.96
Late Fee Income 844.00 844.00
Reinsurance Income -

Reinsurance Commission Income -

Other Direct Income 10,786.00 10,786.00

Claimed Recovery From Reinsurer
Cash Payment

(235,071,254.44)

(2,991,283.11)

(231,475,422.16)

Reinsurance Premium Ceded (5,307,707.00) - (5,307,707.00)
Claim Recover From Reinsurer 253,077.00
Agent Commission Payment (68,879,087.00) (68,879,087.00)
Other Agent Related Expenses (37,204,297.00) (37,204,297.00)
Medical Fee Payment (862,599.00) - (862,599.00)
Service Fee Payment (2,916,679.65) (2,916,679.65)

Death Claim Payment - -

Other Claim Payment - -

Employee Expenses (75,553,587.75) (74,603.46) (75,678,259.12)
Other Operating Expenses (44,347,297.04) - (43,796,550.04)
Income Tax Payment (27,299,953.21) (27,299,953.21) -
Cash Flow Before Changes In Working Capital 55,342,025.58 71,892,279.31 (16,550,253.73)
(Increase) / Decrease Of Current Assets (9,332,870.74) 69,089,263.57 (78,422,134.31)
Increase/ (Decrease) Of Current Liabilities 64,674,896.32 2,803,015.74 61,871,880.58
Net Cash From Operating Activities 92,215,122.89 40,996,493.82 51,218,629.06
Cash Flows From Investing Activities - - -
(Increase) / Decrease Of Investment In Fixed Deposit (270,000,000.00) (270,000,000.00)
(Increase) / Decrease Of Investment In Equity (6,850,000.00) - (6,850,000.00)
(Purchase)/Disposal Of Property, Plant And Equipment (34,234,850.26) 173,304.00 (34,408,154.26)
(Purchase)/Disposal Of Intangible Assets (3,015,195.00) 377,443.00 (3,392,638.00)
(Increases)/Decrease Of Long Term Loan Assets (13,817,044.79) (148,221.79) (13,668,823.00)
Interest Income On Investment 180,544,962.78 - 180,544,962.78
Interest Income On Loan 980,422.33 390,291.33 590,131.00
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (146,391,704.94) (147,184,521.48)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

792,816.54

Issued Of Share Capital 2,740,756.00 2,740,756.00
Dividend Paid To Ordinary Shareholders, Net Of Scrip - -
Finance Expenses - -
Net Cash( Used In)/ From Financing Activities 2,740,756.00 - 2,740,756.00
Net Increase /(Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents (51,435,826.06) 41,789,310.36 (93,225,136.42)

Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beginning Of Year

Effect Of Exchange Rate Changes On Cash & Cash Equivalents

153,981,981.70

153,981,981.70

Cash And Cash Equivalents At The End Of The Year

102,546,155.64

41,789,310.36

60,756,845.28

Remeasurement

The cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year increased under NFRS based financial statements because of recategorization
of bank balance at interest bearing call account as cash and cash equivalent which has been booked as investment under GAAP
based financial statement. Also the stamp on stock has been shown as cash and cash equivalent under GAAP based financial
statement which has been shown as other assets giving effect in change in current assets under NFRS based cashflow statement.
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IV.Reconciliation of Statement of Equity for 16 July 2018 due to the adoption of NFRS

Amount As NPR
Particulars As at 16 July 2018 As at 15 July 2017 As at 16 July 2016
Total equity under previous GAAP 1,493,909,296.82 | 1,403,072,588.32 594,750.00
NFRS adjustment:
Increase in fair value of equity instruments 800,000.00
measured through OCl
Increase in effective interest on staff loan 390,291.53
Decrease in deferred tax income 338,623.39
Increase in net change in gross insurance 540,000.00
contract liabilities
Increase in concessionary interest benefit 242,069.54
expenses on staff loans
Decrease in staff leave provision 316,673.00 - -
Total equity under previous NFRS 1,494,295,568.42 | 1,403,072,588.32 594,750.00
Remeasurement
1. Increase in fair value of equity instruments measured through OCI

The market price of the equity instruments measured through other Comprehensive income has been increased and
such increased has been routed through other comprehensive income to fair value reserve under equity after transferring
the 90% of such surplus to insurance contract liabilities.

Effective interest on staff loan

Effective interest on staff loan has been increased due to difference between market rate used as effective interest rate
and the actual rate of interest provided to them.

Concessionary interest benefit expenses on staff loan

The concessionary interest benefit expenses has been increased under NFRS based financial statement because of
application of effective interest rate method for calculation of staff loan as required under NAS 39.

Deferred Tax Income

Under the GAAP based financial statement there arised the deferred tax income in respect of gratuity and leave payment
net of deferred tax expenses on property plant and equipment but under NFRS statement depending on the carrying
amount and the tax base of assets and liabilities, the deferred tax income has been increase as mentioned on the notes
to reporting period statement of profit or loss reconciliation.
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

V.  Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Position reported for 15 July 2017 due to the adoption of NFRS

Amount As NPR
. Restated Opening |Previously Reported
Particulars 15)uly 2017 | FortheYear| , iusted 15 July 2017
Assets -
Property, Plant And Equipment 109,947.61 109,947.61

Intangible Assets
Financial Investments
Loans At Amortized Costs

Other Financial Assets At Amortized Cost

Deferred Tax Assets

Other Assets

Current Tax Assets

Cash And Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

Equity And Liabilities
Equity

Share Capital

Share Premium
Catastrophic Reserve
Retained Earnings

Other Reserve

Total Equity

Liabilities

Insurance Contract Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Other Liabities

Current Tax Liabilities
Provisions

1,250,000,000.00

50,000.00

153,981,981.70

1,250,000,000.00

50,000.00

153,981,981.70

1,404,141,929.31

1,404,141,929.31

1,397,259,244.00

5,813,344.32

1,397,259,244.00

5,813,344.32

1,403,072,588.32

1,403,072,588.32

384,361.00

684,980.00

384,361.00

684,980.00

Total Liabilities

1,069,341.00

1,069,341.00

Total Equity And Liabilities

1,404,141,929.31

1,404,141,929.31

Reclassification
1. Property, Plant and Equipment

The fixed assets booked under GAAP based financial statement has been recategorized as property, plant and equipment

under NFRS based financial statement as required under NAS 16'Property, Plant and Equipment'.

2. Financial Investment at amortized cost

The long term investment booked under GAAP based financial statement has been recategorized as fiancial investment

at amortized cost.

3. Other Financial liabilities

The amount booked as other liabilities under GAAP have been presented as other financial liabilities under NFRS.

4. Current tax liabilities

The provision for income tax booked under GAAP based financial statement has been presented as Current tax liabilities.
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

VI. Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss for the Fiscal Year ended on 15 July 2017
due to the adpotion of NFRS Amount As NPR
Particulars 1 SRE.'I;a;g% Re-measurement Pre\,lllgljjzlli F;ggc;rted
Gross Insurance Premium Revenue
Insurance Premium ceded to Reinsurer
Net Insurance Premium Revenue - -
Income from investment 8,808,120.66 8,808,120.66
Other income -
Total income 8,808,120.66 8,808,120.66
Gross benefit and claim paid
Claims ceded to reinsurer
Gross Insurance Benefits and claims
Change in insurance contract liabilites
Agent Expenses
Regulatory service fee - -
Employee benefit expenses 187,261.00 187,261.00
Depreciation and Amortization 9,995.24 9,995.24
Other operating expenses 586,072.00 586,072.00
Total Expenditure 783,328.24 783,328.24
Profit Before Taxes 8,024,792.42 8,024,792.42
Income Tax Expenses/(Income) (2,006,198.11) (2,006,198.11)
Current Tax Expenses/Income 2,006,198.11 2,006,198.11
Deferred Tax Expenses/ Income - -
Profit for the Year 6,018,594.32 6,018,594.32
Reclassification
1. Employee Benefit Expenses
The employee expenses has been previous shown under management expenses head which has been
reclassified as employee benefit expense under NFRS based financial statement.
2. Depreciation and amoritzation
The depreciation and amortization has been shown as separate line item under NFRS based financial
staement which is shown under management expenses under GAAP based financial statement.
3. Current Tax Expenses

The provision for income tax has been recategorized as current tax expenses.
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SUN NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

VII. Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Position reported for 15 July 2016 due to the adoption of NFRS
Amount As NPR

Particulars RS Re-measurement L
15 July 2016 15 July 2016

Assets
Property, plant and equipment - - -
Intangible assets - - -
Financial Investments - - -
Loans at amortized costs -
Other Financial Assets at amortized cost 50,000.00 - 50,000.00
Deferred Tax Assets - - -
Other Assets - - -
Current Tax Assets - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 709,750.00 - 709,750.00
Total Assets 759,750.00 - 759,750.00
Equity and liabilities - - -
Equity - -
Share Capital 800,000.00 - 800,000.00
Share Premium - - -
Catastrophic Reserve - - -
Retained earnings (205,250.00) (205,250.00)
Other Reserve -
Total equity 594,750.00 - 594,750.00
Liabilities - - -
Insurance Contract liabilities - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities - -
Financial liabilities 165,000.00 - 165,000.00
Other liabities - - -
Current tax liabilities - - -
Provisions - -
Total liabilities 165,000.00 - 165,000.00
Total equity and liabilities 759,750.00 - 759,750.00

Reclassification
The following items have been recategorized/reclassified under NFRS based Financial Statement as that from GAAP based
financial statements :

1. Other Financial liabilties :
The following items has been shown as other financial liabilites amounting total of Rs.165,000 which were previously
shown as other liabilites under GAAP based financial statement.
a. Credit and Accural Rs.160,000
b. Audit Fee Rs.50,000
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5.9 Liability Adequacy Test

NFRS 4 requires the insurance company to determine their business liabilities using the actuaries.

A Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) was performed by Mr. A.P PEETHAMBARAN, a Fellow of Institute of Actuaries of India
(FIAl), a practicing actuary as at 16th July, 2018 as required by NFRS 4- Insurance contracts in order to assess the
adequacy of the carrying amount of the provision for unexpired risk and the life insurance fund. The valuation is
based on internationally accepted actuarial methods. According to the report issued by Mr. A.P.PEETHAMBARAN, the
liability carried by the company was adequate.

The company began its operation in 2017 and therefore the adequacy of technical provisions is tested for 2017-18
only.

The assumptions used by actuaries for the calculation of liabilities of the company as required by NFRS 4 are as
follows:

1. Accounting Policy:
The gross premium method has been used in order to arrived at the mathematical reserves under each contract.

2. CashFlow:
The future cash flow considered includes premium receivables, commission payable, expected future expenses
and all types of benefit payouts.

3. Valuation methods and Assumptions :
For valuation of all the policies, excepts term assurance plan, 105% of Nepali Assured Lives Mortality table 2009
has been considered whereas for valuation of term assurance policies 130% of Nepali Assured Lives Mortality
Table 2009 has been considered.

6% Interest rate has been taken. Also 6% per annum of office yearly premium for regular and limited premium
in force policies, 0.5% per annum of office yearly premium for paid-up policies, 0.05% per annum of office yealry
premium for endowment cum whole life policies beyond Endowment term and 0.05% of the single premium for
single premium has been considered as expenses.

Inflation rate at 4% has been considered.

4. Discounting Policy :
The future cash flows(premium receivables, commission payable, expected future expenses and all type of benefit
payouts) has been discounted at an interest rate of 6% and inflation rate of 4%.

5. Aggregate provisions
The valuator has considered reserve for extra mortality, rider benefits equal to one year's extra premium.
The valuation has not incorpoated lapsed policies since they are all totally lapsed without acquiring any values.
The company portfolio does not have any policies offering options or does not have any guarantee.
No policy is issued in foreign currency.
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5.10 Employee Benefits

Leave
As at 16 July 2018 | As at 15 July 2017

Particulars

Expenses recognized in Profit or loss
Current Service Cost 1,296,748.00
Interest Cost

Expected Return on Plan Assets -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 218,236.00

Past Service Cost (8,087.00)
Expenses recognized in Profit or loss 1,506,897.00

Expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligations

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Assets

Change in present value of obligations

PV of obligation at the beginning of the year

Interest Cost -
Current Service Cost 1,296,748.00

Benefits Paid (8,087.00)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 218,236.00
Liability at the end of the year 1,506,897.00

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

FV of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year
Interest Income

Expected Return on Plan Assets -
Contribution by Employer 8,087.00
Benefits Paid (8,087.00)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plant Assets at the end of the year
Amount recognized in SOFP

Present Value of Obligations at Year End 1,506,897.00
Fair Value of Plan Assets at year end -
Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 10%
Salary Escalation Rate 7.50%
Retirement Age(Remaining working lives in years) 8.33
Mortality NALMT (2009)
Sensitivity Analysis

Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate 1,046,306.00
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate 1,170,379.00
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in salary escalation 1,167,803.00
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in salary escalation 1,047,692.00

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumptions while holding all other assumption costant. In practice,
this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumption is correlated. When calculating sensitivity of the defined
benefits obligations to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method(present value of the defined obligation calculated
with projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined
benefit liability recognized in the statement of financial positions.
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